
Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com if 
you have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#. 

 
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation 

District Regular Board Meeting 
January 26, 2023 

8:15 am 
County Conference 

Room 
 625 Jefferson Ave. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 
 

A. The Doughnut and Door Prize Resolution – Board Action 
(For Wabasha County Forestry Day, February 17, 2023) 

        B. SWCD donation to MN Forestry Association (MFA) to sponsor Forestry Day $ 
-Board Action 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 
 

Welcome Seth Tentis to the Wabasha SWCD Board for District 4  
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board and may be 
enacted through one motion. Any item on the Consent Agenda may be removed by any 
of the Board members for separate consideration. 

 
A. Tom Gerken voucher payment for Contract# 20-Capacity-1 in the amount of 

$900.00 for 340 cover crops, final payment 
(Funding source FY20 Capacity) 

B. Prairie Ridge Farm LLP voucher payment for Contract# 21-CS-2 in the amount 
of $9,505.00 for 410 Grade Stabilization and 412 Grassed Waterway. 
(Funding sources FY20 State Cost Share $2,336.70, FY21 State Cost Share 
$7,168.30) 
 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. December 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes – Board Action 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action 

A. December District Financial Statements 
B. December Program Record 

 
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $108,414.66 - Board Action 
 

IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 
A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes 
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin – (in packet) 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger (in packet) 
F. Natural Resources Conservation Technician Report – Henry Stelten (in packet) 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske (in packet) 
H. BWSR Report – None 
I. Other agencies – None 

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas) 
B. Gorman Creek Construction  

i. MOU with Trout Unlimited – Board Action 
ii. DNR Contract Amendment – Board Action 
iii. Contract with Danckwart Landscaping & Excavating for $387,028.20 – 

Board Action 
iv. Signature authority for Terri Peters to sign document electronically – Board 

Action 
Iv  

C. 2023 Tentative Meeting Dates on the Fourth Thursday of the month – with exception 
of Thursday’s that conflict with a holiday - Board Action 
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Election of SWCD Board Officers for 2023 – Board Action 

i.  Chairman –  
ii.  Vice Chairman –  
iii.  Secretary –  
iv.  Treasurer –  

 
B. 2023 Committee Appointments-Board Action 

i. Personnel committee –  
ii. Finance Committee –   
iii. Whitewater JPB -  
iv. Zumbro 1W1P -  
v. WinLaC 1W1P -  
vi. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB -  
vii. County Board Meeting Representative – This is a member of our board who 

will go to county meetings. –  
viii. Hiawatha Valley RC&D –  

 
C. ELink Grant Reporting Signature Authority Resolution 01262023-1-Board Action 
D. Designation of Official Newspaper Resolution 01262023-2 (Plainview News) - Board 

Action 
E. Designation of Official Bank Depositories Resolution 01262023-3-Board Action 
F. Designation of Signatories for Bank Accounts Resolution 01262023-4 – Board Action 
G. Supervisors Per Diem rates $125.00. Supervisors and Staff Mileage .655 for 2023 

Resolution 01262023-5- Board Action 
H. Contract extension authority policy 1/26/2023 – Board Action 
I. Operational Rules and Guidelines for 2023 – Board Action 
J. Bank Signatories –- Board Action 
K. Approve Budget – Board Action 



L. Discussion on Bruce Wood Cover Crop Contract# 19-Capacity-4.  Unable to get 
statement from him to cancel the contract, he does not want to continue it. 
SWCD Board consider formally acknowledging the cancellation of the contract 

M. Wabasha SWCD Local Cost Share Policy – Board Action/Signature 
N. FY2023 State of MN BWSR Clean Water Fund SWCD Capacity Program P23-2522 

$124,566.00 & Buffer Law Implementation Program P23-2612 $17,000.00 Grant 
Agreement – Board Action/Signature 

O. FY2023 State of MN BWSR Clean Water Fund Grant Agreement C23-3363 
$178,725.00 – Board Action/Signature 

P. Brian Yotter AgBMP loan application for $200,000.00 
Till manure applicator to be purchased in 2023 - Board Action/Signature 

Q. Signature Authority for Terri Peters to sign all AgBMP Loan Applications 
electronically – Board Action 

R. Approve Mike Haase Contract# 22-CS-2 in the amount of $1,000.00 for 314 Brush 
Management – Board Action/Signature 
(Funding source FY22 State Cost Share) 

S. Approve Amendment#1 for Contract# 22-Capacity-1 to include the landowner Ikkar 
Manor LLC which was originally omitted from the contract.  The land occupier will 
remain as Daniel Sell – Board Action/Signature 
(The original date, amount and the practices will remain unchanged) 

T. Ikkar Manor LLC voucher payment in the amount of $17,546.40 for 
22-Capacity-1 – Board Action 
(Ikkar Manor LLC is the landowner.  Check was made out to Daniel Sell and that 
check did not go out and has been voided) 
(Funding source FY22 Capacity) 

U. Hiawatha Valley RD&D Dissolving  
V. Data Collector Frontier Precision – GPS unit which requires cellular data connection 

cell phone/hot spot, add one cell phone–Equipment Estimates Board Discussion 
W. Legislative Briefing and Reception, March 7 and Day at Capitol March 8 

(More information coming from MASWCD later) 
 

X. Upcoming Events: 
i. Public hearing for Winona-La Crescent Watershed plan on Thursday, January 

26, 2023 at 6 p.m. at the MN State College SE. (1250 Homer Road, Winona. 
In the auditorium, room 205.  Use the main entrance, door A) 

https://www.winonapost.com/community/public-hearing-for-winona-la-crescent-
watershed-plan/article_47a69a52-96a4-11ed-a55c-cf71a0e76d9e.html 
Remote participation, please use the link:  https://bit.ly/WinLaC1W1P  
ii. Forestry Day, February 17, 2023 at the Front Porch, Kellogg 
iii. LSP Training in Bellechester – Regenerative Systems Peer-to-Peer Workshop 

Wednesday, March 1 from 9 am – 3 pm at the Bellechester Community Center 
101 1st St. 

iv. Cow Calf Days, February 9, 2023 at 5:30 pm at the Rossman Farms, 7000  70th 
St. NW Oronoco 

v. Legislative Briefing and Reception, March 7 and Day at the Capitol, March 8 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.winonapost.com/community/public-hearing-for-winona-la-crescent-watershed-plan/article_47a69a52-96a4-11ed-a55c-cf71a0e76d9e.html
https://www.winonapost.com/community/public-hearing-for-winona-la-crescent-watershed-plan/article_47a69a52-96a4-11ed-a55c-cf71a0e76d9e.html
https://bit.ly/WinLaC1W1P


 
XII. Board Reports 

A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Larry (alternate Dag) 
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB - Larry 
E. County Board Meeting – Larry (alternate Sharleen) 
F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D – Lynn 

   
 

XIII. Adjourn – Board Action 



THE DOUGHNUT AND DOOR PRIZE RESOLUTION 
 
 
WHEREAS WABASHA SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT HAS 
BEEN A PARTNER IN WABASHA COUNTY FORESTRY DAY SINCE 1977 
 
AND WHEREAS THE 46th ANNUAL WABASHA COUNTY FORESTRY DAY 
WILL BE IN KELLOGG ON FEBRUARY 17, 2023 
 
AND WHEREAS ATTENDENCE TO THIS FANTASTIC EDUCATIONAL EVENT 
MAY BE JEOPRADIZED WITHOUT FREE COFFEE, DOUGHNUTS, FRUIT, MILK 
AND JUICE 
 
AND WHEREAS COFFEE WITHOUT DOUGHNUTS IS LIKE PIE WITHOUT ICE 
CREAM 
 
AND WHEREAS COFFEE, DOUGHNUTS, FRUIT, MILK AND JUICE ARE IN 
FACT THE LEAST EXPENSIVE PART OF THIS FANTASTIC EVENT IS A 
BARGAIN 
 
AND WHEREAS THE BOARD WILL LOOK INCREDIBLY GOOD KEEPING WITH 
A 45 YEAR TRADITION BY PROVIDING COFFEE, DOUGHNUTS, FRUIT, MILK 
AND JUICE IN 2023 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT WABASHA SWCD WILL PROVIDE 
COFFEE, DOUGHNUTS, FRUIT, MILK AND JUICE FOR THE 2023 WABASHA 
COUNTY FORESTRY DAY.  
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT IN THE INTEREST OF LOOKING EVEN 
BETTER, THE WABASHA SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT WILL 
DONATE 100 TREES FOR DOOR PRIZES.  
 
 





















Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com if 
you have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#. 

 
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation 

District Regular Board Meeting 
December 15, 2022 

8:15 am 
County Conference 

Room 
 625 Jefferson Ave. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Meeting called to order at 8:17 am by Lynn Zabel, Chair 
Supervisors Present: Sharleen Klennert, Treasurer, Dag Knudsen, member, Lynn Zabel, 
Chair.  Note: Larry Theismann and Chet Ross were absent 
Staff Present: Terri Peters, District Manager 
Others Present: Frank Klennert, citizen 
Others Present by Phone: Brian DeVetter, NRCS, Sue Cerwinske, 
Bookkeeper/Admin.Asst., Bob Walkes, County Commissioner 
Lynn Zabel noted that recessed at last meeting 
Terri attended open meeting law session at the MASWCD convention and found out it 
was incorrect to recess the meeting.  Minutes should have been taken and should 
have let people know where they were. 
 

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the agenda as presented. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board and may be 
enacted through one motion. Any item on the Consent Agenda may be removed by any 
of the Board members for separate consideration. 

 
A. Jeremiah Leonhardt voucher payment for Contract# 21-Capacity-8 in the 

amount of $900.00 for 340 Cover Crops, First Year of 3. 
 (Funding source FY21 Capacity) 

B. Huneke Dairy/Paul Huneke voucher payment for Contract# 2022WAGZ-WC-9 in the 
amount of $1,600.00 for 340 Cover Crops, First Year of 3. 
(Funding source WAGZ Watershed Based) 

C. Mike Rahman voucher payment for Contract# 19-DWP-CC-2 in the amount of 
$900.00 for 340 Cover Crops, Final Year of 3. 

 (Funding source FY19 Capacity) 
D. Huneke Bros. LLP/Micah Huneke voucher payment for Contract# 2022WAGZ-WC-5 in 

the amount of $4,000.00 for 340 Cover Crops, First Year of 3. 
(Funding source WAGZ Watershed Based) 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


E. Patricia Livingston voucher payment for Contract# 2022WAGZ-WC-02 in the amount 
of $15,656.72 or 410 Grade Stabilization Structure 
(Funding source WAGZ Watershed Based) 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the Consent Agenda 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Moton Carried 
 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. November 17, 2022 Meeting Minutes – Board Action 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve the Secretary’s Report 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action 
A. November District Financial Statements 
B. November Program Record 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve the Treasurer’s Report 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $ 40,003.55 - Board Action 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve Payment of the Monthly 
Bills in the amount of $40,003.55 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
B. December employee insurance premiums.  December 23rd payroll. 

VSP $64.04 will be paid online.  Auditor/Treasurer Wabasha County $559.85  
Check# 11752 will need to be cut on December 20th and dated 12/23/2022, please 
sign check today – Board Action 

Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve payment of December 
employee insurance premiums after December 23rd payroll is completed. VSP for 
$64.04 online.  Signed check #11752 for Audtor/Treasurer Wabasha County for 
$559.85 to be filled in after 12/23 payroll has been ran.     
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
Attended the MASWCD annual convention.  Troy Daniels talked about money 
available.  May need to go in with partners or coalition to apply for money. 
Attended session of Hiring Employees and Keeping Quality Employees, 
What questions should be asked in the interview. 
Discussion on MASWCD convention: 
Sharleen attended business meetings. A lot of people stressed that the legislature 
is new and we need to take time to talk to them letting them know who we are and 



what we do and why it is important to the legislators. 
Dag agreed that we need to interact with the legislatures.  Even getting to know 
them when they were running for election. 
Lynn said it is the first time that there are more legislators to represent the cities, 
than there are for rural. 
Terri noted that we might need to reach out to committees, like the Environmental. 

B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes 
Attended the annual AMC convention. 
Personnel issues. Breakout sessions.  
Session about recruitment and retaining employees. 
Budget will be approved Dec. 30.  3% Levy.  Truth & Taxation meeting Tues. night. 

C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
Attended MASWCD Convention 
Working with Jen Wahls to establish partnership for water monitoring as part of 
the West Indian Creek project.  Joe Magner U of M Professor brought in River Falls 
Professor.  The university would like to get students out there to get some 
experience. Landowners have also said they would do so and some hesitancy with 
them on having people regularly on their land.   
Gorman Creek – request for Bid. Highway Dept system.  Pre-bid meeting at the site.  
Quite a few contractors were there. Matt & Terri working on answering questions.  
12-22 bid opening at the office. 
Shared some important things learned in the MASWCD session on Open Meeting 
Law. 

D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin – (in packet) Brian DeVetter went over report. 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger (in packet) 
F. Natural Resources Conservation Technician Report – Henry Stelten (in packet) 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske  
H. BWSR Report – None 
I. Other agencies – None 

 
 

X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas) 
Farm Magazine had a article on Stearns County same as convention. 

 
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approve FY2021 Regional Safe Drinking Water for Private Well Users Grant 
Subagreement Amendment -Board Action/Signature 

Motioned by Klennerrt and seconded by Knudsen to approve the FY2021 Regional Safe 
Drinking Water for Private Well Users Grant Sub-agreement Amendment 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
B. 2023 Tentative Meeting Dates on the Fourth Thursday of the month – with exception 

of Thursday’s that conflict with a holiday - Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to table the 2023 Meeting date 
schedule until the January meeting so new board member, Seth Tentis can check if this 
schedule will work for him or if it needs to be adjusted. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 



 
 
 
 
C. Roller Crimper Trailer Rental – Board Discussion/Action 
Discussion:  $250.00 Rental for the trailer for the year in lieu of $20.00 per rental for 
helping to load.   
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert  
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
D. SWCD Drone & Tablet – Board Discussion/Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to spend up to $250.00 for the 
purchase of the SWCD Drone & Tablet. 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed:  None 
Motion Carried: 
 
E. Approve Draft Audit Financial Statements fo r year ended 12-31-21 -Board Action 

(Drafts of Internal Control Letter and Governance Letter) 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the Draft Audit Financial 
Statements for year ended 12-31-21. 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
F. Upcoming Events: 

i. Oct – Dec Expense Report due to Sue by 12:00 pm, Tuesday, December 20 
ii. Monday, December 26 office closed, Christmas observed 
iii. Monday, January 2, 2023 office closed, New Year’s observed 

 
XII. Board Reports 

A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
1:00 Meeting today, 12-15-22. 

B. Zumbro 1W1P – Larry (alternate Dag) – Jan. Meeting 
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn 

Zoom Meeting 
Jan. 26 Public meeting in Winona at 6:00 pm to sum up review process 

D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB – Larry - Nothing 
E. County Board Meeting – Larry (alternate Sharleen) Nothing 
F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D – Lynn 

Missed meeting, no agenda 
Bob reported there will be a final meeting Jan – Feb. to disband.   
Decide what to do with the kity.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

XIII. Closed Session – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to go into closed session at 9:46 am 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

A. Personnel Review 
i. Sue Cerwinske 
ii. Matt Kempinger 
iii. Henry Stelten 

B. District Manager – Terri Peters personnel review and discussion 
C. Adoption of 2023 Wage Scale 

 
 

XIV. Reopen Regular Meeting – Board Action 
A. Adoption of 2023 Wage Scale 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to adopt the 2023 Wage Scale 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
B. Approve Employee Evaluations 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve the employee evaluations. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
C. Approve 2023 salary recommendations  
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve 2023 salary 
recommendations as discussed in the closed session. 
Sue – move up step, Matt – move up 2 steps, Henry move up 1 step and 
Terri move up 1 step. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Moton Carried 

 
XV. Adjourn – Board Action 
         Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to adjourn the meeting at 11:23 am    
  Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
 Opposed: None 
 Motion Carried 
 
        Respectively submitted by: 
 
         
        ___________________________ 
        Larry Theismann, Secretary 



Dec 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 38,613.40
Money Market WNB Financial 7,406.66
Peoples State Bank Money Market 356,345.10
Petty Cash 73.90
WNB Financial 1,647.69

Total Checking/Savings 404,086.75

Total Current Assets 404,086.75

TOTAL ASSETS 404,086.75

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 0.00

3:30 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
01/23/23 Cash Balances
Cash Basis As of December 31, 2022

Page 1



Dec 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 38,613.40
Money Market WNB Financial 7,406.66
Peoples State Bank Money Market 356,345.10
Petty Cash 73.90
WNB Financial 1,647.69

Total Checking/Savings 404,086.75

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 91,822.17

Total Accounts Receivable 91,822.17

Total Current Assets 495,908.92

Fixed Assets
15000 · Furniture and Equipment

Computer 4,562.00
Laptops for Distrcit Techs (2) 3,149.22
Samsung Tablets 1,548.69
15000 · Furniture and Equipment - Other 109,828.00

Total 15000 · Furniture and Equipment 119,087.91

17000 · Accumulated Depreciation -92,727.42

Total Fixed Assets 26,360.49

Other Assets
Prepaid Items

Prepaid Rent 920.43

Total Prepaid Items 920.43

Total Other Assets 920.43

TOTAL ASSETS 523,189.84

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 53,423.06

Total Accounts Payable 53,423.06

Other Current Liabilities
Allowance for Unemployment Reim 1,581.86

3:29 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
01/23/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2022

Page 1



Dec 31, 22

Deferred Revenue
AIS 76,315.06
FY18 Capacity 1,729.56
FY19 Capacity 4,279.45
FY20 Buffer Initiative 1,827.64
FY20 Capacity 2,019.74
FY20 CWMA 1,932.12
FY20 NACD TA Grant 22,399.00
FY20 State Cost share 2,336.70
FY21 Buffer Initiative 15,163.00
FY21 Capacity 31,537.75
FY21 NACD TA Grant 31,189.00
FY21 State Cost Share 8,705.80
FY22 Buffer Initiative 17,000.00
FY22 Capacity 73,525.66
FY22 NACD TA Grant 64,000.00
FY22 State Cost Share 15,401.00
FY22 WCA -1,958.24
FY23 Conservation Delivery 19,619.00
FY23 LWM 14,177.00
FY23 State Cost Share 15,401.00
FY23 WCA 12,118.00

Total Deferred Revenue 428,718.24

Deposit on Tree Sales 2,508.47
24000 · Payroll Liabilities 1,192.99
25500 · Sales Tax Payable 754.90

Total Other Current Liabilities 434,756.46

Total Current Liabilities 488,179.52

Total Liabilities 488,179.52

Equity
Fund Balance- Restatement 47,943.10
Fund Balance Designated 31,903.30
Investment in Capital Assets 26,360.49
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 649.89
32000 · Owners Equity 100,052.44
Net Income -171,898.90

Total Equity 35,010.32

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 523,189.84

3:29 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
01/23/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2022

Page 2



Dec 22

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Charges for Services
Wetlands 200.00

Total Charges for Services 200.00

Intergovernmental Revenues
County

County Regular Allocation 52,405.74

Total County 52,405.74

Partners Grants
FY22 NACD TA Grant -64,000.00
NFWF- Planning for WQ & Habitat 36,810.45

Total Partners Grants -27,189.55

State
MAWQCP 9,909.24

Total State 9,909.24

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 35,125.43

Total Income 35,325.43

Gross Profit 35,325.43

Expense
District Operations

Other Services and Charges
Building Rent 920.83
Conferences and Conventions 1,333.93
Employee Education and Training 20.00
Employee Mileage 120.00
Internet Expense 79.66
Subs. and Pubs. 264.00
Supervisor's Expenses 0.00
Supervisor's Mileage 778.87
Vehicle Expenses

Chevrolet Silverado Vehicle Exp 162.68
Hyundia Tucson Vehicle Expense 16.09

Total Vehicle Expenses 178.77

Total Other Services and Charges 3,696.06

Personnel Services
Employee Salary Permanent 20,586.44

3:31 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
01/23/23 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis December 2022

Page 1



Dec 22

Employer Life and Health
66000 · Payroll Expenses 1,424.08
Employer Life and Health - Other 22.00

Total Employer Life and Health 1,446.08

Employer Share FICA 1,356.11
Employer Share Medicare 317.19
Employer Share PERA 1,357.56

Total Personnel Services 25,063.38

Supplies
Office Supplies 166.22

Total Supplies 166.22

Total District Operations 28,925.66

Project Expenditures
District

Plat Book Expense 2,032.95

Total District 2,032.95

Federal
319 Focus Small Wtrshd-W.Indian 2,382.50

Total Federal 2,382.50

State
FY19 Regnl Drinking Water Prote 900.00
FY20 Gorman Creek Restoration 157.78
FY21 Capacity 900.00
FY22-23 WAGZ 21,256.72
FY22 Buffer Law Implementation 132.78
MAWQCP Administration 10,576.82
North Fork Zumbro-Mazeppa 310.00

Total State 34,234.10

Total Project Expenditures 38,649.55

Total Expense 67,575.21

Net Ordinary Income -32,249.78

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Interest Income

3:31 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
01/23/23 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis December 2022

Page 2



Dec 22

Interest Earnings MM's 583.35

Total Interest Income 583.35

Total Other Income 583.35

Net Other Income 583.35

Net Income -31,666.43

3:31 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
01/23/23 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis December 2022

Page 3



 4:21 PM
 01/25/23
 Cash Basis

 Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
 Monthly Bills Listing

 January 26, 2023

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Jan 26, 23

Liability Check 01/26/2023 11758 Auditor/Treasurer of Wabasha County Dental, LTD, Life Insurance WNB Financial -633.20

Liability Check 01/26/2023 11759 Auditor/Treasurer of Wabasha County Medica - Health Insurance WNB Financial -6,596.84

Liability Check 01/26/2023 EFT VSP Vision Care February 2023 Premium WNB Financial -64.04

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11760 Freeborn County SWCD Oct - Dec 2022 - 4th Qtr MAWQCP WNB Financial -394.59

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11761 Goodhue County SWCD 2023 Envirothon Dues WNB Financial -175.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11762 HBC Internet Service 1/02 - 2/01/2023 WNB Financial -79.66

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11763 Ikkar Manor LLC 22-Capacity-1 412 Grassed Waterway,340 Critical Planting, 484 Mulching WNB Financial -17,546.40

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11764 Jennifer Wahls-C Dec 1 - Dec. 31, 2022 WIC contract services WNB Financial -1,300.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11765 MASWCD MASWCD FY2023 Dues WNB Financial -6,178.05

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11766 MCIT PC & WC Renewal 1-01-2023 to 1-01-2024 WNB Financial -8,531.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11767 Mittel Schule, Inc. February 2023 Rent WNB Financial -920.43

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11768 Olmsted County Public Works December - Mark Root Salary, Benefit & MAWQCP WNB Financial -19,102.01

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11769 Olmsted SWCD Oct - Dec. 2022 Outreach/Safe Drinking Water for Private  Wells WNB Financial -549.70

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11770 Paul Busch Auto Center, Inc. Silverado oil change, front tires and Hyundai oil change WNB Financial -666.42

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11771 Prairie Ridge Farm LLP FY20 State cost share 2,336.70, FY21 State Cost Share 7,168.30 WNB Financial -9,505.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11772 Regents of the U of MN U of MN Beef Team - Cow Calf Days - Wabasha SWCD sponsonr WNB Financial -100.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11773 Rice- SWCD Staff Time Oct-Dec. 2022 - Safe Drinking Water WNB Financial -46.50

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11774 SE SWCD Technical Support JPB MAWQCP 3552.71, Gorman Creek 2109.65, NACD 20233.46, Dues 3000.00 WNB Financial -29,195.82

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11775 Smith Schafer & Associates, LTD Final Billng for Audit of Fin. Stmts year ended 12-31-2021 WNB Financial -5,775.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11776 Tom Gerken-b Final yr Cover Crop pmt WNB Financial -900.00

Bill Pmt -Check 01/26/2023 11777 WSB North Fork Nov. Scope Expansion Design & Permitting WNB Financial -155.00
Jan 26, 23 -108,414.66

 Page 1 of 1



NRCS Field Office Report 
1/26/23 

John Benjamin 
 

Current office standing 

• The office is open to the public. 
• Masks are not required in the building; this could change on a weekly basis dependent on CDC 

COVID community levels presented the Friday before. 

CSP (Conservation Stewardship Program) 

• 10 Active contracts  
• 17 Applications for CSP FY23 Classic in pending status 
• FY23 CSP Classic Signup Deadline; February 10th   
• FY24 CSP Renewal application deadline; March 10th   

EQIP (Environmental Quality Incentive Program)  

• 24 Active EQIP contracts  
• 26 Applications in pending status  
• FY23 signup 1 Ranking deadline Feb 3rd 

 

RCPP-EQIP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program- EQIP) 

• 3 active contracts  
• No applications submitted 

RCPP18 (Regional Conservation Partnership Program) 
Land Management fund through MAWQCP sign up is applicable in this county 

• 1 Active contract   
• FY23 Sign up deadline, December 16th 
• No applications submitted 

CRP (Conservation Reserve Program)  

• 113 Expiring contract reviews for FY23 
• 9 Expiring contracts for FY24  
• 32 Continuous offers accepted  
• 17 General offers accepted  
• 7 CRP establishment checks  



Monthly Report – January 2023 
Matt Kempinger 
 

Training 
 

• Conservation Desktop 

• Job approval authority discussions with area engineer  

• Document prep for job approval authority request submittal 
 
 

Projects  
 

• Review bids for Gorman Creek and work with contractors and partners to make final 
selection 

• Plan for construction monitoring, scheduling, and logistics of Gorman Creek project 

• Look into and request quotes for survey data collector and GNSS system upgrades. 

• Pollution reductions & reporting for 2 projects  

• Year-end WCA reporting 

• Plan for new year’s potential cost share contracts  

• Preliminary design work for 2 waterways 

• Preliminary design work for 2 grade stabilization structures 

• Voucher processing for 1 grade stabilization structure and grassed waterway project 
 
 

 
Others 
 

• Conservation Desktop – CSP work 

• Processed 1 WCA joint application  

• Issue one WCA NOD 

• Reviewed 1 tiling requests for WCA  

• Informed 1 landowner about MAWQCP program 

• Process MAWQCP grant for 1 landowner 

• Provided documentation to MAWQCP specialist for 1 project 

• Answered general resource questions from public and assisted where possible 
 
 
 



Work Summary – January 2023 

Henry Stelten 

 

Projects 

• Cover crop contract planting certification and voucher processing 
• Site visits for grade stabilization structures, reduced-till, cover crop & grazing planning 
• Planning and contracting for new 314 brush management project (5 acres) 
• Communications and planning for grade stab & feedlot projects 

 

Others 

• Buffer Law compliance imagery checks for end of year BuffCat reporting and list of parcels for 
follow up work 

• Conservation desktop work for NRCS CSP contracts 
• Pollution reductions calculated, entered on Elink & SWCD project tracker 
• CSP article 
• Newsletter items drafting 
• Assistance with CSP work for NRCS 
• Tree sale orders, customer assistance 
• Planning for Envirothon 2023 
• Conservation crates scheduling and delivery 
• Initial outreach for 5th grade conservation field day 
• Soil erosion article for FSA newsletter 
• Safe Drinking Water grant customer assistance 
• Policy draft update for soil health grant practices 

Training 

• Conservation Desktop training 
• AgLearn modules for Conservation Planner Lvl 3 



SUE: 

Auditors – GL entries tie out for 2021 
Census 
CSP calls for John and mail letters 
Tree orders/Tracker 
Supervisor Payroll & Expense Reports 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Bank Reconciliations and Deposits & Check Listing 
Financial Statements  
Quarterly Invoicing 
Sales Tax Return for 2022 
SAFES report to State Auditor – Audited Financial Statements 
Tied out W-2’s and 1099’s to run soon 
 
 





































































Resolution 01262023-1 

A Resolution for E-Link Financial Reporting 

2023 
Whereas: 

E-Link Financial Reporting is due on all grants funded through the Board of Water and Soil 
Resources, and 

Whereas:  

These reports require signatures of duly authorized persons of the Board of Supervisors, and 

Whereas:  

The timing of these financials does not always allow the availability of the duly authorized 
member of the Board of Supervisors to timely sign the Financial Reports,  

Therefore, 

Be it resolved: 

That the Board of Supervisors grants signing and submittal authority on the E-Link Financial 
Reporting to the District Manager, and 

Be it further resolved: 

That this authority be effective until revoked by the Board of Supervisors, and 

Be it finally resolved: 

That the financial reports signed by the District Manager be approved as part of the next 
regularly scheduled board meeting of the Wabasha SWCD Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

____________________________    _________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

 



Resolution 01262023-2 

 A Resolution to Designate the Official Newspaper 

For Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District 

2023 

 
Whereas: 

The Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) must designate an official newspaper for 
each year, therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the Wabasha SWCD designate the same newspaper as Wabasha County, and 

Be it finally resolved: 

That the official newspaper for 2022 be The Lake City Graphic. 

 

____________________________    _________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

 

  



Resolution 01262023-3 

A Resolution to Designate the Official Bank Depositories 
for Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District for 

2023 
Whereas: 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) must annually designate official bank 
depositories for official Wabasha SWCD funds, therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the official depository for checking be WNB Financial (Formerly First State Bank), of Wabasha, and 

Be it further resolved: 

That the official depositories for Money Market Savings be WNB Financial, Wabasha, MN; Bank of Alma, 
Wabasha, MN; and Peoples State Bank, Plainview, MN. 

 

_____________________________    ________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

  



Resolution 01262023-4 

A Resolution Designating Signature Authority for 
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District Bank 

Accounts 

2023 
Whereas: 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) has newly elected Board of Supervisors members, 
and  

Whereas: 

The Wabasha SWCD Board of Supervisors had members retire, and  

Whereas: 

It is proper policy to remove retired members and add new member to the signature authority card for 
bank accounts, therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the following Board of Supervisors be authorized to have signature authority over all bank accounts 
of the Wabasha SWCD: 

Take off Lawrence (Larry) Theismann and add Seth Tentis 

 Chet Ross 

Sharleen Klennert 

Dag Knudsen 

Seth Tentis 

Lynn Zabel 

and,  

Be it further resolved: 

That the Wabasha SWCD Board of Supervisors grant signature authority over all bank accounts to the 
District Manager, Terri Peters, and 

Be it further resolved: 

That all checks for disbursement of funds from WNB Financial (formerly First State Bank) require two (2) 
authorized signatures, and 



Be it further resolved: 

That transfer checks from Money Market accounts require one (1) signature, to accommodate funding 
needs, and that the checks can only be issued to Wabasha SWCD for deposit into other existing bank 
accounts, and 

Be it finally resolved: 

That this resolution remains in effect only until any of the above-named signatories are no longer 
associated with Wabasha SWCD 

 

__________________________     ________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

  



Resolution 01262023-5 

A Resolution to Set Board Supervisor Per Diem and 
Mileage Rates for 2023 

Whereas: 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) is required to annually set the per diem and 
mileage rates, and  

Whereas: 

Maximum amounts for such rates are mandated by state statute (M.S. 103C.315 Subd 4), therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the Wabasha SWCD set the 2023 per diem and mileage rates at the mandated maximum allowable 
level of $125/day per diem and $.655 /mile (IRS Rate) for Board Supervisors 

 

__________________________     _____________ 

Board Chair       Date   

 

 

 



Contract extension authority policy 

Wabasha SWCD 
1/26/2023 

 
 

In the event that existing contracts will expire between scheduled board meetings, the 
District Manager and either the Board Chair, or Vice Chair will have the authority to sign 
the extension on behalf of the Wabasha SWCD, with ratification of the amendment to 
extend the contract being made at the next regular board meeting of the Wabasha 
SWCD. 

This policy is designed to reduce the expense and requirement to schedule and hold a 
special board meeting for a single, non-controversial item. 

This policy applies only to non-controversial amendments to extend the contract end 
date. 

 
 
 
      _____________________         _____________ 

Board Chair Date 



 
 

2023 
Board Policy, Operating Rules, Guidelines, and Bylaws 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      1 of 15 



 2 of 15 

 
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District 

Board of Supervisors 

2023 
Policy, Operating Rules, Guidelines and Bylaws 

(TO BE REVIEWED ANNUALLY AT THE BEGINNING OF EACH YEAR) 
 

 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
“The mission statement of the Wabasha Soil & Water Conservation District 
is to provide technical, financial, and educational assistance for land and 

water management in a way that promotes a sound economy and sustains 
and enhances natural resources.” 

 
 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

District I  Lynn Zabel 
District II  Sharleen Klennert 
District III  Chet Ross 
District IV  Seth Tentis 
District V  Dag Knudsen 

 
 
 

Office of the Board of Supervisors 
Wabasha Soil & Water Conservation District 

611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
Wabasha, MN 55981 

wwww.wabashaswcd.com 
 
 
 



 3 of 15 

WABASHA 
SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

RULES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (District) is a soil and water 

conservation district established and operated pursuant to Chapter 103C of Minnesota 

Statutes and governed by an elected Board of Supervisors (Board). These rules are 

intended to facilitate the transaction of business by the District Board and its committees. 

These rules shall become effective upon passage by the District Board.  Acceptance of the 

office of a District Supervisor constitutes acceptance of the obligation to abide by these 

Rules. 

ARTICLE 1 
TRANSACTING THE BUSINESS OF THE DISTRICT 

 
1. Organizational Structure. The business and affairs of the District shall be managed by 

the Board. It is collectively the responsibility of the Board to make policy and oversee 

the implementation of policy as the governing authority for the District.  An individual 

Supervisor has no authority to act on behalf of the Board or the District, except to the 

extent such authority is expressly conferred upon him/her by a majority of the Board. 

The Board implements its policies by hiring, supervising and directing the District 

Manager.  The District Manager is responsible for implementing polices adopted by the 

Board and for hiring, supervising and directing the staff of Wabasha SWCD. 

2. Vacancies. A vacancy in the Board resulting from the death, resignation, removal or 

disqualification of a Supervisor shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining 

members of the Board.  A Board Supervisor so appointed shall serve until a possible 

successor is elected. (Refer to103c.305 subdiv. 6) 

Board supervisors or other persons may suggest names of potential supervisors to the 

Board.  These suggestions shall be submitted to the Board for consideration.  The 



 4 of 15 

Board may request additional information, such as a resume or statement of interest, in 

making its determination on the potential supervisor.  The Board shall make it clear to 

the proposed supervisor that as part of their duties, they will be expected to agree to 

and follow all rules, guidelines, and/or bylaws in place for the Board.  The Board shall 

vote on this recommendation, and it shall be passed if majority vote has been achieved.  

 

3. Officers and Committees 
1. Terms of Office. The term of each Board member is defined by Minnesota Statute. 

2. Chair. In addition to such other powers or duties as the Board may stipulate, the 

Chair shall preside over the debate.  The Chair shall sign all contracts and 

agreements on behalf of the District or designate such authority.  The Chair shall 

have such other powers as may be granted by Minnesota law. 

3. Vice Chair. If the Board shall elect a Vice Chair, the Vice Chair shall, in the 

absence or disability of the Chair, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the 

Chair, and shall perform such other duties as the Board may prescribe.  

4. Treasurer. In addition to such other powers or duties as the Chair or the Board may 

prescribe, the Treasurer shall have such other powers as may be granted by 

Minnesota law. In the absence of the Treasurer, the chair shall be appointed to sign 

the Treasurer’s report as submitted for approval. 

5. Secretary. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board and record or 

delegate all votes and the minutes of all proceedings in a book kept for that 

purpose. The Secretary shall also perform such other duties prescribed by the 

Board.  In the absence of the Secretary, the Chair shall be appointed to sign the 

minutes as submitted for approval. 

6. Committees. The Chairman may establish committees composed of one or two 

Supervisors to carry out the functions specified in the resolution of the Board 

establishing the Committee. Committees so established are subject at all times to 

the direction and control of the Board. These Rules apply to such committees and 

members of such committees to the same extent as they apply to the Board. 

7. Vacancy of a Committee Member. If the office of any officer or committee 

assignment becomes vacant, the Supervisors then in office, although less than a 

quorum, may choose a successor, who shall hold office for the unexpired term with 

respect to which such vacancy occurred. 



 5 of 15 

4. Meetings. The business of the Board is transacted during meetings and upon a vote of 

a majority of the Supervisors present. Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance 

with Minnesota Statutes Sections l03C.301-.335, the Minnesota Open Meeting Law, the 

Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, and Robert's Rules of Order at the 

discretion of the chair. 

1. Organizational Meeting. Each January, the Board shall conduct an organizational 

meeting, which may be a regular monthly meeting, at which the Board shall elect a 

Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary. Committees shall be appointed.  Board 

members shall set the per diem and mileage rates and designate the financial 

institutions, official paper and date, time, and place of its regular monthly meetings. 

Rates cannot exceed those established by the state of Minnesota. Policy will be 

reviewed at this meeting, as well. 

2. Notice. Meetings of the Board may be convened only after proper notice. The type 

of notice depends upon the type of meeting.  The regular meeting of the Board shall 

be held on the dates and at the place and time established by the Board at its 

Organizational Meeting.  The date, time and place of regular meetings shall be 

posted or published by the District Administrator or Administrative Assistant. If the 

time or place of a regular meeting is changed, notice of the time and place of the 

meeting must be given in the manner of a special meeting. Special meetings may 

be called by the Board Chair or upon the approved motion of Board members. 

Notice of special meetings shall be given to Board members (and the public in the 

manner described by the Open Meeting Law) by mail at least 72 hours before the 

meeting.  Emergency meetings may be called only in situations that demand the 

immediate attention of the Board. Notice of the emergency meetings shall be given 

by telephone or any other available means as soon as is practical prior to the 

meeting. The notice of a special or emergency meeting must include a description 

of the business to be conducted. The business transacted at a special or 

emergency meeting shall be limited to items specifically contained in the notice of 

the meeting. The District Administrator or Administrative Assistant shall provide to 

the Supervisors at least three days prior to a regular meeting agendas and relevant 

printed materials to be received and/or discussed at the meeting. 

3. Quorum. A majority of the total number of Supervisors constitutes a quorum.  No 



 6 of 15 

business may be conducted by the Board unless a quorum is present. 

4. Actual Attendance Required. Actual attendance is required in order to cast a vote 

or to meet quorum requirements. Votes may not be cast by proxy.  Failure to attend 

more than three (3) regularly scheduled meetings in a row or four (4) regularly 

scheduled meetings in any one year shall constitute neglect of duty within the 

meaning of Minn. Stat. 103C.315 and could, with a board motion, subject the 

Supervisor to the sanctions set forth in these Rules.  

5. Decorum at Meetings. Board members are expected to conduct themselves at 

Board meetings in a pleasant, polite, courteous and respectful manner. Board 

members shall strive not to speak while another Board member, a staff member, or 

a member of the public has the floor. There shall be no name-calling or profanity. 

Indecorous language or behavior shall be grounds for the imposition of sanctions as 

set forth in these Rules. Discussion will remain germane to the topic of discussion. 

5. Government Data. The government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, applies to 

the District.  The Act specifies that each public body must designate a "responsible 

authority" to handle requests for data. The "responsible authority" for the District is the 

District Administrator. Thus, all requests or inquiries regarding District data received or 

made by a Board member must be forwarded to the District Administrator. The District 

Administrator shall be responsible for searching for the data, classifying the data within 

the scope of the request and for making the specific response to the request for data. 

The District Administrator and District staff are obligated to provide a Supervisor with 

data he/she needs in order to carry out his/her duties as a Supervisor. Thus, District 

data should not be accessed or modified by a Supervisor. 

The Wabasha SWCD charges members of the public for copies of government data.  

These charges are authorized under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 

3(c).   

Charges must be paid with receipt of data or pre-paid. 

Charges are as follows: 

For 100 or Fewer Paper Copies – 25 Cents Per Page 



 7 of 15 

100 or fewer pages of black and white, letter or legal-size paper copies cost 25¢ for a 

one-sided copy, or 50¢ for a two-sided copy. 

Copies on DVD - $10.00/DVD 

Copies on CD - $10.00/CD 

Commercial Use Fee-$50.00 per request 

Most Other Types of Copies – Actual Cost 

The charge for most other types of copies, when a charge is not set by statute or rule, is 

the actual cost of searching for and retrieving the data and making the copies. 

In determining the actual cost of making paper or electronic copies, we factor in 

employee time, the cost of the materials onto which we are copying the data (paper, CD, 

DVD, etc.), and mailing costs (if any).  If your request is for copies of data that we 

cannot reproduce ourselves, such as photographs, we will charge you the actual cost 

we must pay an outside vendor for the copies.   

The cost of employee time to search for data, retrieve data, and make copies is based 

on billable time of the employee doing aforementioned work based on current billing 

found using the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) billing rate calculator.  

Section 1619 of the Food, Conservation, and Energy Act of 2008 prohibits USDA, its 

contractors, and cooperators, from disclosing information provided by an agricultural 

producer or owner of agricultural land concerning the agricultural operation, farming or 

conservation practices, or the land itself, in order to participate in a USDA program as 

well as geospatial information maintained by USDA with respect to such agricultural 

land or operations, subject to certain exceptions and authorized disclosures.  Examples 

of such data include, but are not limited to, conservation plans, wetland determinations, 

Highly Erodible Land Determinations, acreage amounts, assistance notes, National 

Resources Inventory point date, flood damage surveys, program contract information, 

maps, surveys, charts, and aerial photographs if they contain data identifying 

characteristics of the agricultural land.  Sharing of routine information as necessary for 

the implementation of conservation programs with partners will be permitted through a 



 8 of 15 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) “Acknowledgement of Section 1619 

Compliance” signed by the SWCD Board Chair on December 17, 2009. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

RULES OF CONDUCT 
1. Employee Policies Applicable to Supervisors. The following policies set forth in the 

District   Employee Handbook shall apply to Board members: 
• Internet/Email Use Policy  

• Equal Employment Opportunity (Policy 100) 

• Employee Conduct and Work Rules (Policy 106) 

• Payroll (Policy 109) 

• Sexual Harassment Policy  

• Employee Code of Ethics (Policy 003) 

• Chain of Command (Policy 418) 

However, the disciplinary portions of these policies shall not apply to Supervisors. A 

Supervisor who violates any of these policies shall be considered to have engaged in 

"malfeasance" or "neglect of duty" within the meaning of Minn. Stat. § 103C.315 and 

may be sanctioned as set forth in these Rules. 

 

2. Action in furtherance of Mission. The Board is a policy-making body and must act as 

a majority when making any determinations. Therefore, it is imperative that each Board 

member act in a manner consistent with and in furtherance of the policies, mission and 

core values established by the majority of the Board. Therefore, when a Supervisor 

appears in public and speaks on any issue concerning the District and/or its general 

mission or specific projects or practices, such Board Supervisor shall express the official 

Board position on the issue. If a Board Supervisor personally disagrees with the Board's 

position, the Board member shall only express his/her personal opinion if the Board 

member first: 

• Presents the official position of the Board;  

• Clearly explains that his/her personal position is the minority position; and  



 9 of 15 

• Explains that s/he is speaking as a citizen rather than expressing the opinion 

of the Board. 

3. Per Diem and Reimbursement of Travel Expenses Incurred on Behalf of the 
District.  A Board Supervisor is entitled to a per diem in the amount set by the Board 

when engaged in activities on behalf of Wabasha SWCD. However, no Supervisor shall 

receive per diem payments that total more than $550.00 per month. Supervisors, who 

attend meetings or functions on behalf of the District and in furtherance of the goals of 

the District, shall be eligible for reimbursement of reasonable and necessary travel 

expenses actually incurred.  If the Supervisor uses his/her own personal vehicle, 

mileage reimbursement shall be payable in the amount established by the United States 

Internal Revenue Service. For meetings other than regularly scheduled monthly Board 

meetings, it is the policy of the District Board that Supervisors may only receive a per 

diem payment and be reimbursed for travel expenses when attending special board 

meetings and committee assignment meetings as directed or approved by the Board.   

 

Board members planning to attend other meetings representing the Wabasha SWCD or 

educational opportunities to enhance their role as a Wabasha SWCD Supervisor should 

obtain prior approval from the Board to receive per diem and mileage.  If time 

constraints prevent prior approval, board members may submit a request, included in 

their quarterly vouchers, for consideration of post approval by the Board.  Prior approval 

must be obtained from the Board for all out-of-state travel.  All reimbursements for travel 

related expenses require the appropriate receipts. 

 

4. Interaction with District Staff. 
1. Direction and Assignment of Work. The Board shall direct and assign the work of 

the District Administrator.  The District Administrator shall direct and assign the work 

of all other District staff. 

2. Supervision, Evaluation and Discipline of Staff. While a Supervisor may provide 

input to the District Administrator, the District Administrator and not the Board shall 

be responsible for the supervision, direction, evaluation and discipline of individual 

staff members. However, nothing shall preclude the District Administrator from 

eliciting the assistance of the Board, an Officer or an individual Supervisor in the 



 10 of 15 

performance of the District Administrator's duties as personnel manager. 

3. Interaction. Board members’ interaction with the District Administrator or with staff 

must recognize that only the board acting as a whole can govern and give direction 

to the District Administrator. 

4. Problem Resolution. If a problem arises between a Supervisor and a staff person, 

it is expected that the individuals involved will seek to resolve the problem promptly. 

The District Supervisor is subject to the Chain of Command and should address the 

employee issue through the District Manager, in the same manner that the 

employee should address the issue. It is the responsibility of the District 

Administrator to deal with the involved staff member and the responsibility of the 

Board to deal with the involved Supervisor. If a problem arises between the District 

Administrator and a Supervisor, the District Administrator and the Board member 

shall make all attempts to resolve the issue themselves. If sincere and diligent 

attempts by both parities do not resolve the issue, then the District Administrator 

and the Supervisor shall present the situation jointly to the Board.  The Board shall 

resolve all such disputes brought before it and its decision shall be final.  

ARTICLE 3 
ETHICS POLICY 

1. Purpose. Officials in public service must maintain the highest possible standards of 

ethical conduct in their transaction of public business. Such standards should be clearly 

defined and known to the public as well as to local officials. Furthermore, the proper 

operation of democratic government requires that local officials be independent, 

impartial, and responsible to the people; that government decisions and policy be made 

in the proper channels of the government structure; that public office not be used for 

personal gain or as a platform for personal opinion; and that the public have confidence 

in the integrity of this government. The board shall not act in a technical capacity. The 

board will support duties staff are required to carry out as delegated by specific program 

requirements. In recognition of these goals, there is hereby established a Code of Ethics 

for all Supervisors. The purpose of this Code is to establish ethical standards of conduct 

for all Supervisors by setting forth those acts or actions that are incompatible with the 

best interest of the people of Wabasha County, and by directing disclosure by 



 11 of 15 

Supervisors of private financial or other interest in matters affecting the County and 

District.  

2. Definitions.  
1. Administrative action means an action of a nonministerial nature by any Board 

member.  

2. Legislative action means introduction, sponsorship, debate, voting and any other 

official action on any ordinance, resolution amendment, nomination, appointment, 

report or other matter pending or proposed before the Board.  

3. Candidate means any individual who files an affidavit of candidacy or petition to 

appear on the ballot for an elective public office. 

4. Election means a general, special, primary or special primary election. 

5. Local official as defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 10A.01 means a person who 

holds elective office in a political subdivision or who is appointed to or employed in a 

public position in a political subdivision in which the person has authority to make, to 

recommend, or to vote on, as a member of the governing body, major decisions 

regarding the expenditure or investment of public money and shall include the 

supervisors, who are elected officials. 

3. Conflicts of Interest. Board members should not participate in or vote on issues by 

which they are personally affected.  Said supervisor should recuse themselves from any 

voting on an issue where there is a conflict of interest. 

 

Any member of the Board who in the discharge of his or her official duties would be 

required to take an administrative or legislative action or make a decision which would 

substantially affect his or her financial interest, or those of a business with which he or 

she is associated (hereafter the affected person), unless the effect of the affected 

person would be no greater than on other members of his or her business classification, 

profession or occupation, shall take the following actions: 

• The affected person shall prepare, on such form as prescribed by the state ethical 

practices board, a written statement describing the matter requiring action or decision 

and the nature of his or her potential conflict of interest;  

• The affected person shall deliver a copy of the statement to the Chair of the Board;   

• If a potential conflict of interest presents itself and there is insufficient time to comply 



 12 of 15 

with the provision of subsections (1) and (2), the affected person shall orally inform the 

Board of the potential conflict. The affected person shall file a written statement as 

prescribed above within one week after the potential conflict presents itself. 

• The affected person shall remove himself or herself, if possible, from influence over 

the action or decision in question and assign the matter to a subordinate. The Board 

may, upon request, excuse the affected person from taking part in the action or decision 

in question. 

• If the affected person is not permitted or is otherwise unable to abstain from action in 

connection with the matter, he or she must file with the Chair of the Board a statement 

describing the potential conflict of interest and the action taken. Such statement must be 

filed within one week of the action taken. 

4. Representation for a fee. No Supervisor shall represent a client for a fee before the 

Board. 

5. Statement of economic interest. Each individual required to file a statement of 

economic interest shall do so in compliance with Minn. Stat. § l0A.09. All statements 

filed with the Board Chair shall be public data. 

6. Penalty for false statements. A report or statement required by this section shall be 

signed and certified as true by the person required to file the report. Any person who 

signs and certifies to be true a report or statement which he or she knows contains false 

information, who knowingly omits required information, or who fails to file a report or 

statement when required by this section, is subject to penalties established by law. 

7. Gifts. No person or entity shall offer to give a Supervisor or the Supervisor's spouse or 

dependent children, and the Supervisor shall not solicit or receive, anything of value 

(including a gift, favor or service, or a promise of future employment), which would 

cause the total value of such things received from the same person or association to 

exceed one hundred dollars ($100.00) during any calendar year, and which is either (a) 

based on any understanding that such Supervisor's vote, official actions or judgment 

would be influenced thereby, or (b) where the circumstances are such that it could 

reasonably be inferred that the thing of value would influence the Supervisor in the 

discharge of his or her duties. 

8. Confidential information. No Board member shall use or disclose confidential 



 13 of 15 

information gained in the course of or by reason of his or her official position or 

activities, including, but not limited to, any data classified as private, confidential, 

nonpublic or protected nonpublic pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13, in any 

way that could result in financial gain for the Board member, members of his or her 

family, or any business with which he or she is associated.  

9. Violation of Ethics Policy.  Violation of the Ethics Policy shall be considered 

"malfeasance" or "neglect of duty," and may result in sanctions set forth in these Rules. 

 

ARTICLE 4 

SANCTIONS FOR VIOLATION OF THESE RULES 

Violation of any portion of these Rules shall be considered "malfeasance" or "neglect of 

duty”. Sanctions for violation of these rules will be in accordance with state statute 

procedures103c. This may result in any or all of the following sanctions: 

• Private or Public Censure 

• Limitation of the Board member’s authority to appear and act on behalf of the 

Board 

• The docking or stripping of the Board member’s per diem 

• The petition by the Board to the Board of Water and Soil Resources for the 

removal of the Board member pursuant to Minnesota Statute. 

 
ARTICLE 5  

AMENDMENTS TO RULES 

These Rules may be amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board 

provided that: the text of the proposed change was provided in writing along with the notice 

of the meeting at which such proposed change is to be considered; and the Board shall not 

adopt, amend or repeal any Rule to the extent such action causes any Rule to violate 

Minnesota Statutes, the United States Constitution or the Constitution of the State of 

Minnesota. 



 14 of 15 

 

 

Board Service Commitment Pledge and Standards 
 

As a Wabasha Soil & Water Conservation District Board Member recognizing the important 

responsibility, I am undertaking in serving as a member of the Board, I hereby pledge to 

carry out in a trustworthy and diligent manner the duties and obligations in my role as a 

board member. 

 

ROLE: 
I acknowledge that my primary role as a board member is (1) to contribute to the defining of 

the organization mission and governing the fulfillment of that mission, and (2) to carry out 

the functions of the office of Board Member and/or Officer as stated in the Supervisors 

Handbook or Operating rules. 

 

My role as a board member will focus on the development of broad policies that govern the 

implementation of institutional plans and purposes.  This role is separate and distinct from 

the role of the District Administrator, who determines the means of implementation. 

 
Commitment: 
I will exercise the duties and responsibilities of this office with integrity, collegiality and care. 

 
I Pledge: 
1.  To establish as a high priority my attendance at all meetings of the board and committees on 

which I serve. 

 

2.  To come prepared to discuss the issues and business to be addressed at scheduled 

meetings, having read the agenda and all background material relevant to the topics at hand. 

 

 

3.  To work with and respect the opinions of my peers who serve this board, and to leave my 

personal prejudices out of all board motions. 



 15 of 15 

 

4.  To always act for the good of the organization. 

 

5.  To represent this organization in a positive and supportive manner at all times and in all 

places. 

 

6.  To observe the parliamentary procedures and display courteous conduct in all board and 

committee meetings. 

 

7.  To refrain from intruding on administrative issues that are the responsibility of management, 

except to monitor the results and prohibit methods that conflict with board policy. 

 

8.  To avoid conflicts of interest between my position as a board member and my personal life.  

If such a conflict does arise, I will declare that conflict before the board and refrain from voting 

on matters in which I have conflict. 

 

9.  To support in a positive manner all actions taken by the Board even when I am in a minority 

position on such actions. 

 

10.  Prohibit mistreating, provoking or harassing other employees, supervisors, or making 

unwarranted criticism or accusations against other employees or supervisors. 

 

11.  To agree when placed as Chair or on a committee to:  Call meetings as necessary until 

objectives are met; ensure that the agenda and support materials are mailed to all members in 

advance of the meetings; conduct the meetings in an orderly, fair, open, and efficient manner; 

and make committee progress reports to the board at its scheduled meetings. 

 

12.  To participate in the annual plan meetings, planning retreats, board development 

workshops, seminars, and other educational events that enhance my skills as a board member. 

 

Board Member Signature: _____________________________________ 

 

Date: _____________________________________________________ 





WABASHA SWCD LOCAL COST SHARE POLICY 

 

Staff Credentials 

The Wabasha Soil & Water Conservation District (District) will ensure staff has the necessary skill and training 
to install and maintain projects according to standards and specifications.  Building credentials and maintaining 
or seeking certifications to retain knowledgeable staff is a high priority of the District.  Budget allocation 
determined annually according to program work plans. 

Technical expertise of the District includes: 

● 1 Staff with USDA – Natural Resources Conservation Service Job Approval Authority under Ecological 
and/or Engineering Science and 2 district technicians actively working towards Job Approval Authority. 

When professional engineering is required or specific conservation practices require expertise above current 
technical capacity, the District will utilize professional engineers or consultants, staff from Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, USDA – Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS), the Technical Service Area Joint Powers Board and The Nature Conservancy, 
and others where appropriate. 

Delegation 

Landowner contracts for the installation of conservation practices and supporting project documents such as 
cost share vouchers will be signed by the Technical Representative, the District Board Chair (as needed) and 
the landowner (and land occupier). 

Noncompliance 

Cost Share contract noncompliance will be reviewed by the District Board in consultation with the District 
Manager and Technical Staff.  Resolution with the landowner will be attempted through corrective actions or 
alternative avenues. Unresolved issues that the District Board is not able to address will be taken to the County 
attorney for resolution. 

General Policies Applied to all Funding Programs (including nonstructural policies) 

● All funding program contracts and requests for payment require the approval of the District Board of 
Supervisors (Board). 

● All funding programs are subject to fund availability and may be discontinued or subject to program policy 
revisions by the District Board as it deems appropriate. 

● The landowner shall allow District staff access to property for which the installed conservation practice is 
located during the life of the contract.  The installed practice will be subject to periodic inspections by District 
staff. 

● Applicants are responsible to submit application forms, project plans and cost estimates as requested by the 
District in sufficient detail for the District to complete its review. 

●Unless specified otherwise by Minnesota prevailing wage statutes, the value of labor, equipment, materials 
and/or services that are proposed to be provided by the applicant to complete the project, shall be estimated 
at: 

1. Cost-Share Rates – Up to 75% of actual cost of eligible structural practices for State Cost Share 
and Local Capacity Services Cost-Share. If funded with other program funding or multiple programs 
that allow for greater cost share amounts (example: 319 funds for West Indian Creek Watershed or 
other similar cases), cost share amounts will follow guidelines and policy for that program.  



2. General Labor rate will be based on the most current Iowa Farm Custom Rate Survey for labor 
rates. (Date, times and activity must be documented) 

3. Labor rate for chainsaw, brush cutting, etc. will follow the general labor rate from the most recent 
Iowa Farm Custom Rate Survey.  (Date, times and activity must be documented) 

4. Labor rate of $50 per cubic yard for concrete work. 
5. Heavy equipment operation such as skid steers, tractors, backhoes, and scrapers (including labor) 

at $60 per hour.  (Date, times and activity must be documented) 
6. Materials:  $8 per ton for gravel, $5 per yard for sand. 
7. Professional or semi-professional services, i.e. engineering, contracting for prescribed burns, labor 

rate up to $75 per hour.  (Date, times and activity must be documented)  
8. CWMA funds may be approved for 314 Brush Management and 315 Herbaceous Weed Control up 

to $300/acre, not to exceed 75% of total project cost, and will be capped at $2,000 per project to 
ensure availability of cost-share to multiple landowners annually. Appropriate contracted rates up to 
the limits will be determined upon technical evaluation by SWCD staff of site conditions and project 
goals and will be subject to Board approval. 

9. Vegetative plantings (including site prep and native seed used) will have a minimum payment of 
$200/acre depending on technical evaluation of the site and Board approval. 

10. 50% of eligible cost up to $1,000 per Well Decommissioning (following local well-sealing 
policy/checklist). 

11. Flat rate payment for Non-Structural land practices (NLMP):  
1. Cover Crops (NRCS 340) 

a. $30/acre 
b. 30 acres maximum 
c. 3-year contract 
d. Limited to first-time adopters, except for those increasing number of species or 

adopting new planting method or timing upon approval 
 

2. No-Till (NRCS 329) 
a. $20/acre 
b. 30 acres maximum 
c. 3-year contract 
d. Practice must remain on same acres for contract length 

 
3. Tree Planting (NRCS 391 612, 380 & 650) 

a. $1.50/tree or $6.00/tree with protectors 
b. $2,500.00 limit per project 

 
● Unless otherwise approved by the District Board, a portion of a project becomes ineligible for funding if 
construction begins on that portion before a cost share contract has been approved. 

 
● Upon District Board approval, the applicant will receive a letter with a copy of the executed cost share 
contract stating what practice(s) have been approved, the funding amount, time schedule to start, completion 
date and an Operation and Maintenance Plan (OMP). 
 
● Work on the practice shall not start until the District Board has approved a cost share contract at an official 
meeting.  If work begins before the contract has been approved, the practice is not eligible for funding.   

 
● The project must be completed in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Cost Share Program 
Contract and maintained in compliance with the OMP.  (See Contract and O&M Plan) 

 
● The applicant is responsible to pay, in full, all receipts and invoices directly to the contractor or vendor. 
 



● The funding amount will not exceed the amount specified on the original cost share contract.  The 
landowner, prior to completion of the project, shall obtain a District Board approved contract amendment to 
increase funding amounts depending on available funding. 
 
● At project completion the District Staff or consultant with the proper Job Approval Authority shall verify if the 
practice is complete and meets standards and specifications before final payment is issued.  The applicant 
must submit seed tags, invoices or receipts of actual costs in sufficient detail for the District’s review.  
Requests for reimbursement shall include a Voucher and Practice Certification Summary Form. 
 
● A one-time cost share reimbursement payment will be made upon certification that the project has been 
installed and completed to specifications.  To receive a partial payment the landowner will need to meet with 
technical representative to assess progress of work, submit all invoices from contractors to-date to the Board 
for approval.  
 
● District Technical Standards will follow the most recent NRCS Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG), 
Minnesota Stormwater Manual, or be a professionally accepted engineering or ecological practice.  The District 
will also utilize guidance and technical specifications from agencies such as the MN Department of Natural 
Resources, MN Pollution Control Agency, MN Department of Agriculture, and University of MN, where 
appropriate. 
 
● Compliance inspection intervals will be based on minimum State requirements, the amount of total project 
funding received and the complexity of the project.  District staff will develop a process for compliance 
inspection intervals. 
 
 ● It is the District’s goal to support and leverage federal USDA – Environmental Quality Incentive Program 
(EQIP) funding through the District technical assistance. 
 
● If USDA – Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) dollars are secured for a project, the landowner must sign 
a Freedom of Information Act release form that allows the District access to applicable information with the 
landowners CRP project case file.  
 
● The landowner is responsible for the O&M of practices applied under this program to ensure the 
conservation objective of the practice is achieved for the minimum amount of time specified in the contract. 
 
● If the title to the land where the practice is installed is transferred to another party before the expiration of the 
life of cost share contract, it shall be the responsibility of the land occupier or landowner who signed the 
contract to advise the new owner that the contract is in force. 
 
● The practice shall be seeded according to project design requirements.  Mulching, erosion control blanket or 
other erosion control devices may also be required.  These items shall be completed or agreed to before 
certification and approval of the practice.  A soils test may be required depending on practice or seed mix.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policies Applied to the Nonstructural Land Management Practices and Vegetative Practices 
 
1.  Include all the above mentioned 
 



2. A list of some (not all) practices and programs utilizing funds.  Practices shall meet NRCS eFOTG 
standards unless otherwise noted by technical staff. 
a. NRCS eFOTG practices included but not limited to:  314 – Brush Management, 315 – Herbaceous 

Weed Control, 327 – MN Conservation Cover, 338 – Prescribed burning, 342 – Critical Area 
Planting, 666 – Forest Stand Improvement 

b. Vegetative reestablishment between field and forest edge.  NRCS eFOTG practices included but 
not limited to:  386 – Field Border, 327 – Conservation Cover, 338 – Prescribed Burning, 612 – 
Tree/Shrub Establishment and 490 - Tree/Shrub Site Preparation  

c. Buffer Law – assistance with vegetative establishment if CRP is not an option.  NRCS FOTG 
practices included but not limited to:  391- Riparian Forest Buffer, 327 – Conservation Cover, 393 – 
Filter Strip, 386 – Field Border 

d. Contour Strips - NRCS eFOTG practices included but not limited to:  332 – Contour buffer strip 
e. Cover crops - NRCS eFOTG practices included but not limited to: 340 – cover crop 

Priorities 
1. Priority applications will be considered on first-come-first-serve basis 
2. Highest to lowest priorities 

a.  Projects in priority concern areas that can include, but are not limited to, subwatershed planning areas, 
Whitewater Landscape Plan, Zumbro WRAPS, Lower Zumbro Floodplain Areas and Watershed Based 
Implementation Plans. 

b. Projects that are not eligible for other financial assistance 
c. Projects can reach 75% cost-share with only this financial assistance 
d. Projects with other cost-share but needs this funding to get to or closer to 75% 

 
3. Follow prioritization set forth in Non-Structural Land Management Practices (NLMP) 
Implementation policies included herein. 
 
4. Feedlots Projects 

a. Areas identified in local WRAPS and TMDL implementation plans 
b. Feedlots that pose the greatest bacteria pollution potential 
c. Feedlots with proximity or drainage to cold water trout streams 
 

5. Utilize the “PRIORITY WELL CHARACTERISTICS CHECKLIST” to prioritize applications if 
needed (see checklist) 
 

Additional 
• In-kind services and materials provided by the land occupier such as, but not limited to, earthwork, seedbed 
preparation, seeding, and permanent fencing materials may be credited toward the land occupier’s share of 
total eligible cost of the practice not to exceed rates listed in 
the most recent Iowa Farm Custom Rate Survey 
• SWCD District Manager is authorized to approve cover crop contracts do to timing of activity 
• Multiple funds can be used to get landowner to percentage allowed for project 
• Combined financial assistance from the SWCD and all other sources may not exceed 100% 
• Projects funded by Root River One Watershed One Plan (1W1P) Implementation Grant will follow policies set 
by Root River 1W1P Policy Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adoption 



This Conservation Practices Financial Assistance Policy specifically revokes and replaces all previous SWCD 
financial assistance/cost-share polices related to State Cost-Share, Local Capacity Services Cost-Share and 
Local/County Cost-Share. 

 
SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
Board approved: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________   ____________________________ 
SWCD Board Chair        Date 
 

  



 
 

FY 2023 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF WATER and SOIL RESOURCES 

CLEAN WATER FUND SWCD CAPACITY PROGRAM &  
BUFFER LAW IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

Vendor: 0000205683 

PO#: 3000015225 
 
This Grant Agreement is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Board of Water and Soil Resources (Board) 
and Wabasha SWCD, 611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 Wabasha  Minnesota 55981 (Grantee). 
  
 

This grant is for the following Grant Programs: 
P23-2522 2023 - SWCD Local Capacity Services (Wabasha SWCD)  $124,566 
P23-2612 2023 - Buffer Law (Wabasha SWCD)  $17,000 

Total Grant Awarded:  $141,566 
 

Recitals 
1. The Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special Session, Chapter 1, Article 2, Section 6(q), appropriated Clean Water Funds (CWF) 

to the Board for the FY 2023 SWCD Capacity Program. 
2. The Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special Session, Chapter 1, Article 2, Section 6(e), appropriated Clean Water Funds (CWF) 

to the Board for the FY 2023 Buffer Program Implementation. 
3. The Board adopted Board Orders #22-22 to authorize and allocate funds for the FY 2023 SWCD Capacity Program and Board 

Order #22-37 to authorize and allocate funds for the FY 2023 Buffer Program Implementation. 
4. The Grantee has submitted a Board approved work plan for this program which is incorporated into this Grant Agreement 

by reference. 
5. The Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this Grant Agreement to the 

satisfaction of the Board. 
6. As a condition of the grant, Grantee agrees to minimize administration costs. 

  
Authorized Representative 

The State’s Authorized Representative is James Adkinson, Grants Coordinator, BWSR, 520 Lafayette Road North, Saint Paul, MN 
55155, 651-539-2588, or his successor, and has the responsibility to monitor the Grantee’s performance and the authority to accept 
the services and performance provided under this Grant Agreement. 
 
The Grantee’s Authorized Representative is:  TITLE: District Manager, Terri Peters 
      ADDRESS 611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
      CITY Wabasha 
      TELEPHONE NUMBER 651-560-2044 

If the Grantee’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Grant Agreement, the Grantee must immediately notify 
the Board.  

 
Grant Agreement 

1. Terms of the Grant Agreement. 
1.1. Effective date: The date the Board obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 5. The Board will 

notify the Grantee when this Grant Agreement has been executed. The Grantee must not begin work under this Grant 
Agreement until it is executed.   

1.2. Expiration date: December 31, 2025, or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, whichever comes first.   
1.3. Survival of Terms: The following clauses survive the expiration date or cancellation of this Grant Agreement: 7. Liability; 

8. State Audits; 9. Government Data Practices; 11. Publicity and Endorsement; 12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; 
14. Data Disclosure; and 19. Intellectual Property Rights. 



Page 1 of 4 

 
2. Grantee’s Duties. 

The Grantee will comply with required grants management policies and procedures set forth through Minn. Stat § 16B.97, 
Subd. 4(a)(1). The Grantee is responsible for the specific duties for the program as follows: 
2.1. Implementation: The Grantee will implement their work plans, which are incorporated into this Grant Agreement; 

andabide by the SWCD Conservation Delivery and Capacity Grants Policy for the SWCD Capacity Program Grants and 
FY 2022 Clean Water Fund Competitive Grants Policy for the Buffer Program Implementation Grants.  

2.2. Reporting: All data and information provided in a Grantee’s report shall be considered public. 
2.2.1. The Grantee will submit an annual progress report to the Board by February 1 of each year on the status of program 

implementation by the Grantee. Information provided must conform to the requirements and formats set by the 
Board.  

2.2.2. The Grantee will prominently display on its website the Clean Water Legacy Logo and a link to the Legislative 
Coordinating Commission website. 

2.2.3. Final Progress Report: The Grantee will submit a final progress report to the Board by February 1, 2026, or within 30 
days of completion of the project, whichever occurs sooner.  Information provided must conform to the 
requirements and formats set by the Board. 

 
3. Time.  

The Grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this Grant Agreement. In the performance of this Grant 
Agreement, time is of the essence.  
 

4. Terms of Payment. 
4.1. All grant funds will be distributed in one installment promptly after the execution of the Grant Agreement.  
4.2. All costs must be incurred within the grant period and all incurred costs must be paid before the amount of unspent grant 

funds is determined.  
4.3. The obligation of the State under this Grant Agreement will not exceed the amount listed above. 
4.4. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payment allows the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up 

costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future.      
 

5. Conditions of Payment. 
5.1. All services provided by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement must be performed to the Board’s satisfaction, as set 

forth in this Grant Agreement and in the Board approved work plan for this program. Compliance will be determined at the 
sole discretion of the Board’s Authorized Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal, State, and local 
laws, policies, ordinances, rules, and regulations. The Grantee will not receive payment for work found by the Board to be 
unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, State, or local law. 

5.2. Minn. Stat. § 103C.401 (2018) establishes Board’s obligation to assure program compliance. If the noncompliance is 
severe, or if work under the Grant Agreement is found by the Board to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of 
federal, State, or local law, the Board has the authority to require the repayment of grant funds or withhold payment on 
grants from other programs. 
 

6. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Grant Contract Agreement Complete. 
6.1. Assignment. The Grantee may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this Grant Agreement without the 

prior consent of the Board and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, executed and approved by the same parties who 
executed and approved this Grant Agreement, or their successors in office.   

6.2. Amendments. Any amendments to this Grant Agreement must be in writing and will not be effective until it has been 
approved and executed by the same parties who approved and executed the original Grant Agreement, or their successors 
in office. Amendments must be executed prior to the expiration of the original Grant Agreement or any amendments 
thereto. 

6.3. Waiver. If the Board fails to enforce any provision of this Grant Agreement, that failure does not waive the provision or its 
right to enforce it. 

6.4. Grant Contract Agreement Complete. This Grant Agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the Board 
and the Grantee. No other understanding regarding this Grant Contract, whether written or oral, may be used to bind 
either party. 
 

7. Liability. 
The Grantee must indemnify, save, and hold the State, its agents, and employees harmless from any claims or causes of action, 
including attorney’s fees incurred by the State, arising from the performance of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee or the 



Page 2 of 4 

Grantee’s agents or employees. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Grantee may have for the State’s 
failure to fulfill its obligations under this Grant Agreement. 
 

8. State Audits. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 8, the Grantee’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the 
Grantee or other party relevant to this Grant Agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the Board and/or the 
State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this Grant Agreement, receipt 
and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all State and program retention requirements, 
whichever is later. 
8.1. The books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices of the Grantee and its designated local units of 

government and contractors relevant to this grant, may be examined at any time by the Board or Board’s designee and are 
subject to reconciliation. The Grantee or delegated local unit of government will maintain records relating to the receipt 
and expenditure of grant funds.  

  
9. Government Data Practices. 

The Grantee and Board must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all 
data provided by the Board under this Grant Agreement, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the 
release of the data referred to in this clause by either the Grantee or the State. 
 

10. Workers’ Compensation. 
The Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with Minn. Stat. § 176.181, Subd. 2, pertaining to workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage. The Grantee’s employees and agents will not be considered State employees. Any claims that may arise under the 
Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by any third party as a consequence 
of any act or omission on the part of these employees are in no way the State’s obligation or responsibility. 
 

11. Publicity and Endorsement. 
11.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Grant Agreement must identify the Board as the sponsoring 

agency. For purposes of this provision, publicity includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, 
reports, signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee individually or jointly with others, or any 
subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Grant Agreement. 

11.2. Endorsement. The Grantee must not claim that the State endorses its products or services. 
 

12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. 
Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this Grant Agreement. Venue for all legal proceedings 
out of this Grant Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate State or federal court with competent jurisdiction in 
Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 

13. Termination. 
13.1. The Board may cancel this Grant Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days’ written notice to the 

Grantee. Upon termination, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services 
satisfactorily performed. 

13.2. In the event of a lawsuit, an appropriation from a Clean Water Fund is canceled to the extent that a court determines that 
the appropriation unconstitutionally substitutes for a traditional source of funding. 

13.3. The Board may immediately terminate this Grant Agreement if the Board finds that there has been a failure to comply with 
the provisions of this Grant Agreement, that reasonable progress has not been made or that the purposes for which the 
funds were granted have not been or will not be fulfilled. The Board may take action to protect the interests of the State of 
Minnesota, including the refusal to disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already 
disbursed. 
 

14. Data Disclosure. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 270C.65, Subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Grantee consents to disclosure of its social security number, 
federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to the State, to 
federal and State tax agencies and State personnel involved in the payment of State obligations. These identification numbers 
may be used in the enforcement of federal and State tax laws which could result in action requiring the Grantee to file State tax 
returns and pay delinquent State tax liabilities, if any. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

15. Prevailing Wage. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee or contractor to pay prevailing wage for projects that include construction work of $25,000 
or more, prevailing wage rules apply per Minn. Stat. §§ 177.41 through 177.44. All laborers and mechanics employed by grant 
recipients and subcontractors funded in whole or in part with these State funds shall be paid wages at a rate not less than those 
prevailing on projects of a character similar in the locality. Bid requests must state the project is subject to prevailing wage.  
 

16. Municipal Contracting Law. 
Per Minn. Stat. § 471.345, grantees that are municipalities as defined in Subd. 1 of this statute must follow the Uniform 
Municipal Contracting Law. Supporting documentation of the bidding process utilized to contract services must be included in 
the Grantee’s financial records, including support documentation justifying a single/sole source bid, if applicable. 
 

17. Constitutional Compliance. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee to comply with requirements of the Minnesota Constitution regarding the use of Clean 
Water Funds to supplement traditional sources of funding. 
 

18. Signage. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee to comply with requirements for project signage as provided in Minnesota Laws 2010, 
Chapter 361, Article 3, Section 5(b) for Clean Water Fund projects. 
 

19. Intellectual Property Rights. 
The State owns all rights, title, and interest in all of the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, 
trademarks, and service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under this grant. Works means all inventions, 
improvements, discoveries, (whether or not patentable), databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, 
negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 
the Grantee, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with others in the performance of this 
grant. Work includes “Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, 
photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other materials, whether in tangible or 
electronic forms, prepared by the Grantee, its employees, agents or subcontractors, in the performance of this grant. The 
Documents will be the exclusive property of the State and all such Documents must be immediately returned to the Board by 
the Grantee upon completion or cancellation of this grant at the Board’s request. To the extent possible, those Works eligible 
for copyright protection under the United State Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Grantee assigns 
all right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to the State. The Grantee must, at the request of the 
State, execute all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the State’s ownership interest in the Works 
and Documents. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Grant Agreement to be duly executed intending to be bound thereby. 
 
Approved: 
 

Wabasha SWCD       Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
   
By:     _______________________________________ By:    ____________________________________________   
    (print) 
         
           _______________________________________    
                               (signature)  
 
Title: _______________________________________               Title:  ____________________________________________      
 
 
Date: _______________________________________ Date: ____________________________________________  



 
 

FY 2023 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF WATER and SOIL RESOURCES 

CLEAN WATER FUND SWCD CAPACITY PROGRAM &  
BUFFER LAW IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

Vendor: 0000205683 

PO#: 3000015225 
 
This Grant Agreement is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Board of Water and Soil Resources (Board) 
and Wabasha SWCD, 611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 Wabasha  Minnesota 55981 (Grantee). 
  
 

This grant is for the following Grant Programs: 
P23-2522 2023 - SWCD Local Capacity Services (Wabasha SWCD)  $124,566 
P23-2612 2023 - Buffer Law (Wabasha SWCD)  $17,000 

Total Grant Awarded:  $141,566 
 

Recitals 
1. The Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special Session, Chapter 1, Article 2, Section 6(q), appropriated Clean Water Funds (CWF) 

to the Board for the FY 2023 SWCD Capacity Program. 
2. The Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special Session, Chapter 1, Article 2, Section 6(e), appropriated Clean Water Funds (CWF) 

to the Board for the FY 2023 Buffer Program Implementation. 
3. The Board adopted Board Orders #22-22 to authorize and allocate funds for the FY 2023 SWCD Capacity Program and Board 

Order #22-37 to authorize and allocate funds for the FY 2023 Buffer Program Implementation. 
4. The Grantee has submitted a Board approved work plan for this program which is incorporated into this Grant Agreement 

by reference. 
5. The Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this Grant Agreement to the 

satisfaction of the Board. 
6. As a condition of the grant, Grantee agrees to minimize administration costs. 

  
Authorized Representative 

The State’s Authorized Representative is James Adkinson, Grants Coordinator, BWSR, 520 Lafayette Road North, Saint Paul, MN 
55155, 651-539-2588, or his successor, and has the responsibility to monitor the Grantee’s performance and the authority to accept 
the services and performance provided under this Grant Agreement. 
 
The Grantee’s Authorized Representative is:  TITLE: District Manager, Terri Peters 
      ADDRESS 611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
      CITY Wabasha 
      TELEPHONE NUMBER 651-560-2044 

If the Grantee’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Grant Agreement, the Grantee must immediately notify 
the Board.  

 
Grant Agreement 

1. Terms of the Grant Agreement. 
1.1. Effective date: The date the Board obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 5. The Board will 

notify the Grantee when this Grant Agreement has been executed. The Grantee must not begin work under this Grant 
Agreement until it is executed.   

1.2. Expiration date: December 31, 2025, or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, whichever comes first.   
1.3. Survival of Terms: The following clauses survive the expiration date or cancellation of this Grant Agreement: 7. Liability; 

8. State Audits; 9. Government Data Practices; 11. Publicity and Endorsement; 12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; 
14. Data Disclosure; and 19. Intellectual Property Rights. 



Page 1 of 4 

 
2. Grantee’s Duties. 

The Grantee will comply with required grants management policies and procedures set forth through Minn. Stat § 16B.97, 
Subd. 4(a)(1). The Grantee is responsible for the specific duties for the program as follows: 
2.1. Implementation: The Grantee will implement their work plans, which are incorporated into this Grant Agreement; 

andabide by the SWCD Conservation Delivery and Capacity Grants Policy for the SWCD Capacity Program Grants and 
FY 2022 Clean Water Fund Competitive Grants Policy for the Buffer Program Implementation Grants.  

2.2. Reporting: All data and information provided in a Grantee’s report shall be considered public. 
2.2.1. The Grantee will submit an annual progress report to the Board by February 1 of each year on the status of program 

implementation by the Grantee. Information provided must conform to the requirements and formats set by the 
Board.  

2.2.2. The Grantee will prominently display on its website the Clean Water Legacy Logo and a link to the Legislative 
Coordinating Commission website. 

2.2.3. Final Progress Report: The Grantee will submit a final progress report to the Board by February 1, 2026, or within 30 
days of completion of the project, whichever occurs sooner.  Information provided must conform to the 
requirements and formats set by the Board. 

 
3. Time.  

The Grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this Grant Agreement. In the performance of this Grant 
Agreement, time is of the essence.  
 

4. Terms of Payment. 
4.1. All grant funds will be distributed in one installment promptly after the execution of the Grant Agreement.  
4.2. All costs must be incurred within the grant period and all incurred costs must be paid before the amount of unspent grant 

funds is determined.  
4.3. The obligation of the State under this Grant Agreement will not exceed the amount listed above. 
4.4. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payment allows the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up 

costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future.      
 

5. Conditions of Payment. 
5.1. All services provided by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement must be performed to the Board’s satisfaction, as set 

forth in this Grant Agreement and in the Board approved work plan for this program. Compliance will be determined at the 
sole discretion of the Board’s Authorized Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal, State, and local 
laws, policies, ordinances, rules, and regulations. The Grantee will not receive payment for work found by the Board to be 
unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, State, or local law. 

5.2. Minn. Stat. § 103C.401 (2018) establishes Board’s obligation to assure program compliance. If the noncompliance is 
severe, or if work under the Grant Agreement is found by the Board to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of 
federal, State, or local law, the Board has the authority to require the repayment of grant funds or withhold payment on 
grants from other programs. 
 

6. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Grant Contract Agreement Complete. 
6.1. Assignment. The Grantee may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this Grant Agreement without the 

prior consent of the Board and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, executed and approved by the same parties who 
executed and approved this Grant Agreement, or their successors in office.   

6.2. Amendments. Any amendments to this Grant Agreement must be in writing and will not be effective until it has been 
approved and executed by the same parties who approved and executed the original Grant Agreement, or their successors 
in office. Amendments must be executed prior to the expiration of the original Grant Agreement or any amendments 
thereto. 

6.3. Waiver. If the Board fails to enforce any provision of this Grant Agreement, that failure does not waive the provision or its 
right to enforce it. 

6.4. Grant Contract Agreement Complete. This Grant Agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the Board 
and the Grantee. No other understanding regarding this Grant Contract, whether written or oral, may be used to bind 
either party. 
 

7. Liability. 
The Grantee must indemnify, save, and hold the State, its agents, and employees harmless from any claims or causes of action, 
including attorney’s fees incurred by the State, arising from the performance of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee or the 



Page 2 of 4 

Grantee’s agents or employees. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Grantee may have for the State’s 
failure to fulfill its obligations under this Grant Agreement. 
 

8. State Audits. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 8, the Grantee’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the 
Grantee or other party relevant to this Grant Agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the Board and/or the 
State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this Grant Agreement, receipt 
and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all State and program retention requirements, 
whichever is later. 
8.1. The books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices of the Grantee and its designated local units of 

government and contractors relevant to this grant, may be examined at any time by the Board or Board’s designee and are 
subject to reconciliation. The Grantee or delegated local unit of government will maintain records relating to the receipt 
and expenditure of grant funds.  

  
9. Government Data Practices. 

The Grantee and Board must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all 
data provided by the Board under this Grant Agreement, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the 
release of the data referred to in this clause by either the Grantee or the State. 
 

10. Workers’ Compensation. 
The Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with Minn. Stat. § 176.181, Subd. 2, pertaining to workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage. The Grantee’s employees and agents will not be considered State employees. Any claims that may arise under the 
Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by any third party as a consequence 
of any act or omission on the part of these employees are in no way the State’s obligation or responsibility. 
 

11. Publicity and Endorsement. 
11.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Grant Agreement must identify the Board as the sponsoring 

agency. For purposes of this provision, publicity includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, 
reports, signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee individually or jointly with others, or any 
subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Grant Agreement. 

11.2. Endorsement. The Grantee must not claim that the State endorses its products or services. 
 

12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. 
Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this Grant Agreement. Venue for all legal proceedings 
out of this Grant Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate State or federal court with competent jurisdiction in 
Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 

13. Termination. 
13.1. The Board may cancel this Grant Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days’ written notice to the 

Grantee. Upon termination, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services 
satisfactorily performed. 

13.2. In the event of a lawsuit, an appropriation from a Clean Water Fund is canceled to the extent that a court determines that 
the appropriation unconstitutionally substitutes for a traditional source of funding. 

13.3. The Board may immediately terminate this Grant Agreement if the Board finds that there has been a failure to comply with 
the provisions of this Grant Agreement, that reasonable progress has not been made or that the purposes for which the 
funds were granted have not been or will not be fulfilled. The Board may take action to protect the interests of the State of 
Minnesota, including the refusal to disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already 
disbursed. 
 

14. Data Disclosure. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 270C.65, Subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Grantee consents to disclosure of its social security number, 
federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to the State, to 
federal and State tax agencies and State personnel involved in the payment of State obligations. These identification numbers 
may be used in the enforcement of federal and State tax laws which could result in action requiring the Grantee to file State tax 
returns and pay delinquent State tax liabilities, if any. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

15. Prevailing Wage. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee or contractor to pay prevailing wage for projects that include construction work of $25,000 
or more, prevailing wage rules apply per Minn. Stat. §§ 177.41 through 177.44. All laborers and mechanics employed by grant 
recipients and subcontractors funded in whole or in part with these State funds shall be paid wages at a rate not less than those 
prevailing on projects of a character similar in the locality. Bid requests must state the project is subject to prevailing wage.  
 

16. Municipal Contracting Law. 
Per Minn. Stat. § 471.345, grantees that are municipalities as defined in Subd. 1 of this statute must follow the Uniform 
Municipal Contracting Law. Supporting documentation of the bidding process utilized to contract services must be included in 
the Grantee’s financial records, including support documentation justifying a single/sole source bid, if applicable. 
 

17. Constitutional Compliance. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee to comply with requirements of the Minnesota Constitution regarding the use of Clean 
Water Funds to supplement traditional sources of funding. 
 

18. Signage. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee to comply with requirements for project signage as provided in Minnesota Laws 2010, 
Chapter 361, Article 3, Section 5(b) for Clean Water Fund projects. 
 

19. Intellectual Property Rights. 
The State owns all rights, title, and interest in all of the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, 
trademarks, and service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under this grant. Works means all inventions, 
improvements, discoveries, (whether or not patentable), databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, 
negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 
the Grantee, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with others in the performance of this 
grant. Work includes “Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, 
photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other materials, whether in tangible or 
electronic forms, prepared by the Grantee, its employees, agents or subcontractors, in the performance of this grant. The 
Documents will be the exclusive property of the State and all such Documents must be immediately returned to the Board by 
the Grantee upon completion or cancellation of this grant at the Board’s request. To the extent possible, those Works eligible 
for copyright protection under the United State Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Grantee assigns 
all right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to the State. The Grantee must, at the request of the 
State, execute all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the State’s ownership interest in the Works 
and Documents. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Grant Agreement to be duly executed intending to be bound thereby. 
 
Approved: 
 

Wabasha SWCD       Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
   
By:     _______________________________________ By:    ____________________________________________   
    (print) 
         
           _______________________________________    
                               (signature)  
 
Title: _______________________________________               Title:  ____________________________________________      
 
 
Date: _______________________________________ Date: ____________________________________________  

















User
Typewriter
5/24/2022



Cow Calf Days™
2023 Seminar Tour & Trade Show

Topics

 50th Anniversary Celebration of Cow Calf Days

 Cattle Market Outlook (Where do we go from here?)     Eric Mousel, U of M Beef Team

 Simple Things that Add Value      Dar Giess, DLCC Ranch of Pierz, MN

 Integrating Grazing & Soil Health MN Grazing Lands Association

 Vitamin & Mineral Nutrition Dr. Aimee Lutz, Devenish Nutrition

   www.extension.umn.edu/beef | 218.513.0781 | emmousel@umn.edu

Oronoco, MN
February 9, 2023, 5:30 PM

 Rossman Farms
7000 70th St. NW

Contact: Tony @ 507.259.2174 or Michelle @ 507.206.7986

$10 per person at the door, includes meal and materials












	December 15, 2022  Minutes.pdf
	Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District Regular Board Meeting
	V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action
	VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT
	VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action
	VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS
	IX. DISTRICT REPORTS
	X. OLD BUSINESS
	XI. NEW BUSINESS
	XII. Board Reports
	XIII. Closed Session – Board Action
	Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to go into closed session at 9:46 am
	Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel
	Opposed: None
	Motion Carried
	A. Personnel Review
	i. Sue Cerwinske
	ii. Matt Kempinger
	iii. Henry Stelten
	B. District Manager – Terri Peters personnel review and discussion
	C. Adoption of 2023 Wage Scale
	XIV. Reopen Regular Meeting – Board Action
	A. Adoption of 2023 Wage Scale
	Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to adopt the 2023 Wage Scale
	Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel
	Opposed: None
	Motion Carried
	B. Approve Employee Evaluations
	Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve the employee evaluations.
	Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel
	Opposed: None
	Motion Carried
	C. Approve 2023 salary recommendations
	Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve 2023 salary recommendations as discussed in the closed session.
	Sue – move up step, Matt – move up 2 steps, Henry move up 1 step and
	Terri move up 1 step.
	Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel
	Opposed: None
	Moton Carried
	XV. Adjourn – Board Action
	Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to adjourn the meeting at 11:23 am      Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel
	Opposed: None
	Motion Carried
	Respectively submitted by:
	___________________________
	Larry Theismann, Secretary

	Contract Extenson authority policy 1-26-2023.pdf
	Contract extension authority policy Wabasha SWCD

	2023 Wabasha SWCD Operating Rules and Bylaws.pdf
	Policy, Operating Rules, Guidelines and Bylaws
	INTRODUCTION
	ARTICLE 1
	TRANSACTING THE BUSINESS OF THE DISTRICT
	ARTICLE 3

	ARTICLE 4
	ARTICLE 5


	2023 SWCD Local Capacity and Buffer Law.pdf
	4.4. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payment allows the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future.

	January 26, 2023 Agenda.pdf
	Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District Regular Board Meeting
	V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action
	VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT
	VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action
	VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS
	IX. DISTRICT REPORTS
	X. OLD BUSINESS
	XI. NEW BUSINESS
	XII. Board Reports
	XIII. Adjourn – Board Action

	2023 SWCD Local Capacity and Buffer Law.pdf
	4.4. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payment allows the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future.

	January 26, 2023 Agenda.pdf
	Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District Regular Board Meeting
	V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action
	VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT
	VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action
	VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS
	IX. DISTRICT REPORTS
	X. OLD BUSINESS
	XI. NEW BUSINESS
	XII. Board Reports
	XIII. Adjourn – Board Action

	January 26, 2023 Monthly bills.pdf
	Sheet1




